
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA

)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) CRMINAL NO. 4:14-cr-103

)
v.

KENT LEROY SORENSON,

) INFORI\{ATION
)
)
)
)
)

Defendant(s).

TIIE UNITED STATES CHARGES:

COI]NT 1

From or about February 2012 to in or about August 2012, in the Southern District

of Iowa and elsewhere, the defendant, KENT LEROY SORENSON, willfully caused the

authorized campaign committee of a candidate for the office of President of the United States to

falsely report to the Federal Election Commission the disbursements to persons to whom that

committee made expenditures, to wit, causing the committee to report to the Federal Election

Commission disbursements to Film Production Company W ttrat were in fact disbrnsements to

defendant KENT LEROY SORENSON aggregating $25,000 and more in calendar year 2012.

This is a violation of Title 2, United States Code, Sections 434(a)(1),

434(b)(5XA) & a37g(dX(1XA)(i), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2.



TI{E IINITED STATES FURTIIER CHARGES:

COUNT 2

On or about September 19, 2013, in the Southern District of lowa" the defendant,

KENT LEROY SORENSON, knowingly, with the intent to impede, obstruct, tilrd influence, and

in relation to and contemplation ol the investigation and proper administration of matters within

the jurisdiction of departments and agencies of the United States, concealed, covered tp,

falsified, ffid made a false entry in a record, documento and tangible object, to wit, providing

false, sworn testimony in proceedings before the Independent Counsel to the Iowa Senate Ethics

Committee, which proceedings were videotaped and tanscribed, and which false statements the

defendant well knew and contemplated were related to investigation by the Federal Bureau of

Investigation and by the Federal Election Commission.

This is a violation of Title 18. United States Code. Section 1519.

Jack Smith
Chief, Public Integrity Section

Director, Election Crimes Branch
Robert J. Higdon, Jr.
Trial Attomey
Public Integrity Section
Criminal Division
U.S. Deparrnent of Justice
Telephone: 202-514-1412
Telefor: 202-514-3003
E-mail: richard.pilger@usdoj.gov

bobby.hi gdon@usdoj . sov
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UNITED STATES DISTzuCT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
) Case No. 4:14-cr-103

v.)
) PLEA AGREEMENT

KENT LEROY SORENSON )
)

Defendant. )

The United States of America (also referred to as "the Government"), the State of Iowa

(also referred to as "the State"), and the Defendant, KENT LEROY SORENSON, and Defendant's

attorney, enter into this Plea Agreement.

A. CHARGES

l. Subject Offensel-s]. Defendant will waive Indictment (by executing a separate

waiver of Indictment form) and plead gutlty to Counts One and Two of a Criminal Information

charging, in Count One, a violation of TitIe2,United States Code Section a3a@)Q),434(b)(5)(A)

& a37g(dx(lXA)(i), and Title 18, United States Code, Section 2,that is willfully causing false

reports of federal campaign expenditures to the Federal Election Commission; ffid, in Count Twoo

aviolation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1519, that is falsifuing records in

contemplation and relation to a federal investigation, intending to obstruct that investigation.

2. No Charges to be Dismissed. There are no charges to be dismissed.

3. No Further Prosecution. The Government agrees that Defendant will not be

charged by the Public Integrity Section of the Criminal Division of the United States Departrnent

of Justice with any other federal criminal offense arising from or directly relating to this

investigation. The State agrees that Defendant will not be charged in the State of Iowa with any



paragraph and this Plea Agreement do not apply to (l) any criminal act occurring after the date

of this agreement, (2) any crime of violence, or (3) any criminal offense which Defendant did not

fully disclose to law enforcement during Defendant's interviews pursuant to any proffer or other

agreements with the United States.

4. Non-Prosecution of Defendant's Spouse. The Government agrees that

Defendant's current spouse will not be charged by the Public Integrity Section of the Criminal

Division of the United States Department of Justice with any federal criminal offense arising

from or directly relating to this investigation. The State agrees that Defendant's current spouse

will not be charged in the State of Iowa with any State or local criminal offense arising from or

directly relating to this investigation. This paragraph and this Plea Agreement do not apply to

(l) any criminal act occuoitg after the date of this agreement, (2) any crime of violence, or (3)

any criminal offense which Defendant did not fully disclose to law enforcement during

Defendant's interviews pursuant to any proffer or other agreements with the United States.

B. MAXIMUM PENALTIES

5. Manimum Punishment. Defendant understands that the Count One of the

Criminal Information to which Defendant is pleading guilty carries a maximum sentence of up to

five years inprison; amaximum fine of $250,000; costs of prosecution, if applicable; and aterm

of supervised release of three years. Defendant understands that the Count Two of the Criminal

Information to which Defendant is pleading guilty caries a ma:<imum sentence of up to twenty

years inprison; amaximum fine of $250,000; costs of prosecution, if applicable; and aterm of

supervised release of three years. A mandatory special assessment of $100 per count also must

be imposed by the sentencing court.

6. Supervised Release--Explained. Defendant understands that, during any period
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of supervised release or probation, Defendant will be under supervision and witl be required to

comply with certain conditions. If Defendant were to violate a condition of supervised release,

Defendant could be sentenced up to four years in prison, without any credit for time previously

served.

7. Detention. Provided that Defendant does not violate any conditions of

Defendant's pretrial release, and does not appear to be mentally at risk to harm himself or any

other person, the Government agrees to recommend that Defendant may remain on pretrial

release pending imposition of sentence and will recommend that Defendant be permitted to

self-report to serve any term of imprisonment imposed by the Court.

C. NATURE OF THE OFFENSE -- FACTUAL BASIS

8. Elements Understood. Defendant understands that to prove the offense alleged

under Count 1 (Causing False Expenditure Reports to the Federal Election Commission), the

Government would be required to prove beyond a reasonable doubt the following elements:

(a) Defendant caused false reports to the Federal Election Commission of
expenditures by an authorized campaign committee of a federal candidate
to a person;

(b) the false reporting of expenditures aggregated $25,000 or more in a
calendar year; and

(c) Defendant acted willfully, that is, knowing that the conduct was unlawful.

Defendant fuither understands that to prove the offense alleged under Count 2 (Falsification of

records in Contemplation of or Relation to a Federal Investigation), the Govemment would be

required to prove beyond a reasonable doubt the following elements:

(a) Defendant knowingly falsified a document, record, or tangible object;

(b) Defendant did so with the intent to impede, obstruct, or influence, and in
contemplation of or in relation to a matter; and



(c) the matter was within the jurisdiction of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation or the Federal Election Commission, which are departments
or agencies of the United States.

9. Factual Stipulations. Attached hereto as Attachment "A", and incorporated by

reference herein, ffi€ factual stipulations entered into between the parties, including the factual

stipulations of Defendant's offense conduct relating to each of the subject offenses. Defendant

acknowledges that these statements are true. Defendant further agrees that these factual

statements may be used by any party, including the United States, in any other proceeding,

unless the Court should permit the Defendant to withdraw from this Plea Agreement prior to

sentencing. Defendant understands that, during the change of plea hearing, the judge and the

prosecutor may ask Defendant questions under oath about the offense to which Defendant is

pleading guilty, in the presence of Defendant's attorney. Defendant understands that Defendant

must answer these questions truthfully, and that Defendant can be prosecuted for perjwy if
Defendant gives any false answers.

10. Venue. Defendant agrees that venue for this case is proper for the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Iowa.

D. SENTENCING

I 1. Sentencing Grlidelines. Defendant understands that Defendant's sentence will be

determined by the Court after considering the advisory United States Sentencing Guidelines,

together with other factors set forth by law. The Sentencing Guidelines establish a sentencing

range based upon factors determined to be present in the case, which include, but are not limited

to the following:

(a) The nature of the offenses to which Defendant is pleading guilty;



The amount of money involved;

Whether Defendant attempted to obstruct justice in the investigation or
prosecution of the offense; and

(d) Acceptance or lack of acceptance of responsibility.

Defendant understands that, wtder some circumstances, the Court may oodepart" or "vary" from

the Sentencing Guidelines and impose a sentence more severe or less severe than provided by the

guidelines, up to the maximum in the statute of conviction. Defendant has discussed the

Sentencing Guidelines with Defendant' s attorney.

12. Acceptance of Responsibility. The Government agrees to recommend that

Defendant receive credit for acceptance of responsibility under USSG $3E1.1. The Government

reserves the right to oppose a reduction under $ 3 E I . I if after the plea proceeding Defendant

obstructs justice, fails to cooperate fully and truthfully with the United States Probation Office,

attempts to withdraw Defendant's pleq or otherwise engages in conduct not consistent with

acceptance of responsibility. If the base offense level is 1 6 or above, as determined by the

Court, the Government agrees that Defendant should receive a 3-level reduction, based on timely

notification to the Government of Defendant's intent to plead guilty.

13. Presentence Report. Defendant understands that the Court may defer a decision

as to whether to accept this Plea Agreement until after a Presentence Report has been prepared

by the United States Probation Office, ffid after Defendant's attorney and the Government have

had an opportunity to review and challenge the Presentence Report. The parties are free to

provide all relevant information to the Probation Office for use in preparing a Presentence

Report.

(b)

(c)

t4. Evidence at Sentencing. The parties may make whatever comment and



evidentiary offer they deem appropriate at the time of sentencing and entry of plea, provided that

such offer or comment does not violate any other provision of this Plea Agreement. Nothing in

this Plea Agreement restricts the right of Defendant or any victim to make an allocution

statement, to the extent permitted under the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, nor does this

Plea Agreement convey any rights to appear at proceedings or make statements that do not

otherwise exist.

15. Sentence to be Decided by Judge -- No Promises. This Plea Agreement is

entered pursuant to Rule l1(c)(1XA) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. Defendant

understands that the final sentence, including the application of the Sentencing Guidelines and

any upward or downward departures, is within the sole discretion of the sentencing judge, and

that the sentencing judge is not required to accept any factual or legal stipulations agreed to by

the parties. Any estimate of the possible sentence to be imposed,by adefense attorney or the

Government, is only a prediction, and not a promise, and is not binding. Therefore, it is

uncertain at this time what each Defendant's actual sentence will be.

16. No Right to Withdraw Plea. Defendant understands that Defendant will have no

right to withdraw Defendant's plea if the sentence imposed, orthe application of the Sentencing

Guidelines, is otherthan what Defendant anticipated, or if the sentencing judge declines to

follow the panies= recommendations.

17. Criminal History.

Defendant has represented to the United States that Defendant has two prior

misdemeanor convictions for each of which he was sentenced to less than sixty days of

imprisonment after suspensions of irnprisonment. If the Defendant is found to have other

criminal convictions, the Government may withdraw from this Plea Agreement.



E. FINES, COSTS, ANID RESTITUTION

18. Fines and Costs. Issues relating to fines and/or costs of incarceration are not

dealt with in this agreement, and the parties are free to espouse their respective positions at

sentencing

19. Special Assessment. Defendant agrees to pay the mandatory special assessment

of $200 ($tOO per count) at or before the time of sentencing, as required by l8 U.S.C. g 3013.

20. Restitution. Defendant agrees that the Court should impose an order of

restitution for all relevant conduct in an amount to be determined by the Court; that such order of

restitution shall be due and payable immediately; and that if Defendant is not able to make full

payment immediately, Defendant shall cooperate with the United States Probation Office in

establishing an appropriate payment plan, which shall be subject to the approval of the Courr,

and thereafter in making the required payments. Any such payment plan does not preclude the

Government from utilizing any collections procedures pursuant to the Federal Debt Collections

Act and including the Treasury offset program.

21. Financial Statement. Defendant agrees to complete truthfully and in full a

financial statement provided by the U.S. Attorney's Office, ffid return the financial statement to

the U.S. Attorney's Office within 30 days of the filing of this PleaAgreement.

F. LIMITED SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

22- Limited Scope of Agreement. This Plea Agreement does not limit, in any w&y,

the right or ability of the Government to investigate or prosecute Defendant for crimes occurring

outside the scope of this Plea Agreement. Additionally, this Plea Agreement does not preclude

the Government from pursuing any civil or administrative matters against Defendant, including,

but not limited to, civil tax matters and civil forfeiture which arise from, or are related to, the



facts upon which this investigation is based.

23. Agreement Limited to Public Integrity Section and the State of Iowa. This Plea

Agreement is limited to the Public Integrity Section of the Criminal Division of the United States

Department of Justice and the State if lowa, and cannot bind any other federal, state or local

prosecuting, administrative, or regulatory authorities.

24. Victlms not a party to this Agreement. Defendant understands that victims, if

ffiY, are not a party to this Plea Agreement, and that the "loss" and "restitution" amounts

applicable to this criminal case do not resolve any claims that victims may have against

Defendant. Defendant understands that victims remains free to pursue all lawful civil remedies

they may deem appropriate.

G. WAIVER OF TRIAL, APPEAL A]\D POST-COIWICTION RTGHTS

25 - Trial Rights Explained. Defendant understands that this guilty plea waives the

right to:

(a) Continue to plead not guilty and require the Government to prove the
elements of the crime beyond a reasonable doubt;

(b) A speedy and public trial by jury, which must unanimously find Defendant
guilty before there can be a conviction;

(c) The assistance of an attorney at all stages of trial and related proceedings,
to be paid at Government expense if Defendant cannot afford to hire an
attorney;

(d) Confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses;

(e) Present evidence and to have witnesses testi$r on behalf of Defendanr,
including having the sourt issue subpoenas to compel witnesses to testify
on Defendant's behalf;

(D Not testify or have any adverse inferences drawn from the failure to testifu
(although Defendant also has the right to testi$r, if Defendant so chooses)
and



If Defendant is convicted, the right to appeal, with the assistance of an
attorney, to be paid at Govemment expense if Defendant cannot afford to
hire an attornev.

26. Waiver of Appeal and Post-Conviction Review. Defendant knowingly and

expressly waives any and all rights to appeal Defendant's conviction in this case, including a

waiver of all motions, defenses and objections which Defendant could assert to the charge(s) or

to the court's entry ofjudgment against Defendant; except that both Defendant and the United

States preserve the right to appeal any sentence imposed by the district court, to the extent that an

appeal is authorized by law. Also, Defendant knowingly and expressly waives any and all rights

to contest Defendant's conviction in any post-conviction proceedings, including any proceedings

under 28 U.S.C. g 2255. These waivers are full and complete, except that they do not extend to

the right to appeal or seek post-conviction relief based on grounds of ineffective assistance of

counsel or prosecutorial misconduct not known to Defendant, or reasonably knowable, at the

time of entering this Plea Agreement.

H. VOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA AND OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT WITH
COUNSEL

27 - Voluntariness of Plea. Defendant represents that Defendant's decision to plead

guilty is Defendant's own, voluntary decision, ffid that the following is true:

(a) Defendant has had a full opportunity to discuss all the facts and
circumstances of this case with Defendant's attorney, and Defendant has a
clear understanding of the charges and the consequences of this plea,
including the maximum penalties provided by law.

(b) No one has made any promises or offered any rewards in return for this
guilty plea, other than those contained in this written agreement.

(c) No one has threatened Defendant or Defendant's family to induce this
guilty plea.

(e)



Defendant is pleading guilty because in truth and in fact Defendant is
guilty and for no other reason.

28. Consultation with Attornev. Defendant has discussed this case and this plea with

Defendant's attorney and states that the following is true:

(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Defendant states that Defendant is satisfied with the representation
provided by Defendant's attorney.

Defendant has no complaint about the time or attention Defendant's
attorney has devoted to this case nor the advice the attorney has given.

Although Defendant's attorney has given Defendant advice on this guilty
plea, the decision to plead guilty is Defendant's own decision.
Defendant's decision to enter this plea was made after full and careful
thought, with the advice of Defendant's attorney, and with a full
understanding of Defendant's rights, the facts and circumstances of the
case, and the consequences of the plea.

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

29 - Entire Agreement. This Plea Agreement, and any attachments, is the entire

agreement between the parties. Any modifications to this Plea Agreement must be in writing

and signed by all panies.

30. Public Interest. The parties state this Plea Agreement is in the public interest and

it takes into account the benefit to the public of a prompt and certain disposition of the case and

furnishes adequate protection to the public interest and is in keeping with the gravity of the

offense and promotes respect for the law.

31. Execution/Effective Date. This Plea Agreement does not become valid and

binding until executed by each of the individuals (or their designated representatives) shown

below.

32. Consent to Proceedings by Vi{eo-Conferencing. Defendant consents to any

proceedings in this case, including his plea proceedings, sentencing proceedings, or any other
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proceedings, being conducted by video-conferencing technology in use within the Southern

District of Iowa if approved by the Court.

J. SIGNATURES

33. Defendant. I have read all of this Plea Agreement and have discussed it with my

attorney. I fully understand the Plea Agreement and accept and agree to it without reservation.

I do this voluntarily and of my own free will. No promises have been made to me other than the

promises in this PIea Agreement. I have not been threatened in any way to get me to enter into

this Plea Agreement. I am satisfied with the services of my attorney with regard to this Plea

Agreement and other matters associated with this case. I am entering into this Plea Agreement

and will enter my plea of guilty under this Agreement because I committed the crime to which I

am pleading guilty. I know that I may ask my attorney and the judge any questions about this

Plea Agreement, and about the rights that I am giving up, before enteri

34. Defendant's Attorney. I have read this Plea Agreement and have discussed it in

its entirety with my client. There is no Plea Agreement other than the agreement set forth in this

writing. My client fully understands this Plea Agreement. I am satisfied my client is capable

of entering into this Plea Agreement, and does so voluntarily of Defendant's own free will, with

full knowledge of Defendant's legal rights, and without any coercion or compulsion. I have had

full access to the Government's discovery materials, and I believe there is a factual basis for the

plea. I concur with my client entering into this Plea Agreement and in entering a

the plea of guilty.

KENT LEROY SORENSON

1l



plea of guilty pursuant to the Plea Agreement.

€ -,'
Date

Brown & Scott, P.L.C.
l00l Office Park Road, Suite 108
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265
Telephone: 5 1 5 1225-0101
Facsimile: 5 I 5 1225-3737
Email : hskrfan@brownscott. com

35. United States. The Government agrees to the terms of this Plea Agreement.

Jack Smith
Chief, Public Integrity Section

7 t ltl Bv:
Date

Director, Election Crimes Branch
Robert J. Higdon, Jr.
Trial Attorney
Public Integrity Section
Criminal Division
U.S. Department of Justice
Telephone: 202-5 1 4-l 412
Telefa:< : 202-51 4-3 003
E-mail: richard.pilger@usdoj.gov

bobby.higdon@usdoj . gov

State of Iowa. The State of Iowa agrees to the terms of this Plea Agreement.

John P. Sarcone
Polk County Attorney

? - )-s^ - tf By:
Date

36.

Des Moines, IA 50309
Telephone: 5 15-286-3737
Telefa:r : 5 | 5 -286-3 428
E-mail : ctyatty@nolkcountyiowa. gov

F. Montgomery

Richard C. Pilger

Polk County Justice Center
222 sth Avenue
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V.

KENT LEROY SORENSON.

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA

LINITED STATES OF AMERICA. )

)
) Criminal No. 4: l4-cr- 103

)

Defendant.

ATTACHMENT A

STIPULATED STATEMENT
) oF FACTS

The parties agree and stipulate as follows:

BACKGROUND

l) At all relevant times, Kent Leroy Sorenson ("Sorenson") was a resident of the

Southern District of Iowa, was an elected member of the Senate of the State of lowa, and was the

owner of Company Z.

2) At all relevant times, The Federal Election Campaign Act of 197l, as amended,

Title 2,United States Code, Sections 431, et seq., ("Election Act") limited comrption and the

appearance of corruption in the election of candidates for federal office, including the office of

President of the United States, in pertinent part by providing for public disclosure of the

expenditures by federal election campaigns:

a. The Election Act required the authorized committee of a candidate for

President of the United States to make reports to the Federal Election

Commission ("FEC").

b. The Election Act required the authorized committee of a candidate for

President of the United States to report any expenditure by the committee over

$200 within the calendar year that the committee made to meet a candidate or



committee operating expense, together with the date, amount, and purpose of

such operating expenditure.

c. The FEC in turn reported to the public the expenditures reported by the

authorized committee of a candidate for President of the United States.

3) At all relevant times, the FEC was an agency and department of the United States

with jurisdiction to enforce the Election Act, and to receive and publicly report accurate

information to the public about expenditures to influence federal elections.

4) At all relevant times, the Federal Bureau of Investigation ("FBI") was an agency

and department of the United States with jurisdiction to investigate criminal violations of the

Election Act.

5) Political Committee I was the authorized political committee registered with the

FEC as accepting contributions and making expenditures to further the nomination and election

of Candidate A to the office of President of the United States during the 2012 federal election

cycle.

6) Political Committee 2 was the authorized political committee registered with the

FEC as accepting contributions and making expenditures to further the nomination and election

of Candidate B to the office of President of the United States during the 2012 federal election

cycle.

7) Political Committee 3 was a political action committee affiliated with Candidate

A, and was allowed to contribute up to $5,000 to authofized committees of federal candidates.

8) From in or about March 20ll to in or about Decemb er 201 l, Sorenson publicly

worked for the election of Candidate A to the office of President of the United in exchange for



$7,000 to $7,500 per month, first from Political Committee 3 and later from Political Committee

l, which passed through a political consulting company and Comparry Z.

OF'FENSE CONDUCT

9) While Sorenson was working for the campaign of Candidate 1, representatives of

Candidate 2 were attempting to persuade Sorenson to switch allegiance to Candidate2.

l0) From on or about October 29,2011, to on or about December26,2011, Sorenson

or his representative secretly negotiated directly and indirectly with agents of Political

Committee 2 to switch his support to Candidate B in exchange for secret payments.

11) On or about December26,201l, Sorenson met with Political Operative D, an

agent of Candidate B and Political Committee2 ata restaurant in Altoona, Iowa; Political

Operative D then and there gave Sorenson, through Sorenson's spouse, a check for $25,000.00

("the check"), in return for Sorenson's public support and work for Candidate B, which check

was drawn on the account of Company X, which was in turn owned by the spouse of Political

Operative D.

12) Sorenson accepted and held the check, rather than cashing it, initially because he

was undecided on switching campaigns; later the check served as concealed security against the

loss of anticipated payments for two months of work for Candidate A, and as concealed security

for future concealed payments of approximately $8,000 per month from Candidate B after

Sorenson switched his public support from Candidate A to Candidate B.

13) On or about December 28,2011, at apolitical event in Des Moines, Iowa,

Sorenson publicly announced his switch of support and work from Candidate A to Candidate B.

14) At or about the time of Sorenson's switch to support of Candidate B, Political

Operative D and Sorenson agreed that Political Committee 2 would secretly pay Sorenson



approximately $8,000 per month from in or about January to in or about July 2012, and Political

Committee 2 did thereafter, through the actions of Political Operative D and others, pay

Sorenson approximately $8,000 per month (totaling at least $73,000 in calendar year 2012), and

each payment was concealed from the FEC and the public by transmittal through, first, Film

Production Company W (which was not affiliated with any federal candidate or committee and

which did no work for federal candidates or committees), and second through Comp any Z, and

then, finally, to Sorenson and his spouse.

15) On or about December 29,2011, in response to criticism of his switch to the

Candidate B, and in an effort to conceal the payments to compensate him for that switch, Sorenson

gave interviews denying allegations that he, Sorenson, was receiving any money in return for his

support of Candidate B, and noting that reports to be filed by Political Committee 2 withthe FEC

would show that Political Committee 2 made no payments to him.

16) Political Committee 2 filed regular reports with the FEC during calendar year 2012,

which omitted any reference to the agreed expenditures of approximately $73,000 to Sorenson,

other than the concealing payments to Film Production Company W.

17) Sorenson knew that agents of Political Committee 2 would and did falsely omit his

name and other identifying information from required reports to the FEC.

I 8) One of the reasons why Sorenson did not want payments to him from Political

Committee 1 or Political Committee 2 disclosed to the FEC, and then by the FEC to the public, was

because of possible interpretation of Iowa Senate Ethics Rules prohibiting sitting Senators from

accepting payment from a political campaign, and on or about January 28,2013, aformer

employee of Political Committee I , filed a complaint against Sorenson with the Iowa Senate

Ethics Committee, which, on or about May 1,2013, asked the Chief Justice of the Iowa Supreme



Court to appoint an Independent Counsel to investigate some of the allegations contained in the

complaint, who, on or May 10,2013, appointed an Independent Counsel to the Iowa Senate Ethics

Committee.

19) On or about February 18, 2013, a complaint was filed with the FEC alleging

violations of federal campaign finance laws regarding payments made to Sorenson by Political

Committee I and Political Committee2.

20) On or about September 19, 2013, the Independent Counsel, took a sworn,

transcribed, and videotaped deposition record from Sorenson, who then and there contemplated

that both the FEC and the FBI were investigating the legality of the payments he received from

Political Committeel and Political Committee 2.

2l) During the deposition, the Independent Counsel asked Sorenson numerous

questions about any money that Sorenson received from either Political Committee 1 or Political

Committee 2, and, Sorenson specifically and falsely denied being paid by either Political

Committee in return for his endorsement of the respective candidates or for his work on their

behalf, and further falsely described the entities used to conceal the payments to him, including

falsely characterizing Film Production Company W as (a) a political consulting firm that was

seeking assistance from Sorenson in scouting shooting locations, and (b) also assisting Sorenson in

potentially seeking higher office.

22) For example, Sorenson made and caused a false transcript and videotape record

during his sworn deposition in the following answers to the following questions for the purpose,

among others, of impeding, obstructing, and influencing investigations by the FEC and FBI:

mean?

"Q. So when you say you were volunteering 50 hours a week, what do you



A. I was either volunteering or I was working or I was - I mean, it was just -
Listen, I don't believe I was paid to help [Candidate A]. But I did - I spent a lot of time

helping [Candidate A].

*c {.,|c

a. Let me ask this directly: Did the payments that [Company Zf rcceived for -
or from [Film Production Company W], have anything whatsoever to do with the

[Candidate B] campaign?

A. No."

23) The acts Sorenson took in furtherance of the offenses charged in this case,

including the acts described as'oOffense Conduct" above, were done willfully and knowingly with

the specific intent to violate the law.

24) Sorenson acknowledges that the foregoing statement of facts does not (and is not

intended to) describe every detail of his conduct relating to the offenses charged in this case.

Date Kent Leroy Sorenson

Date F. Montgomery Brown, Esq.
Brown & Scott, P.L.C.
1001 Office Park Road, Suite 108
West Des Moines, Iowa 50265
Telephone: 5 | 5 1225 -01 0l
Facsimile: 5 I 5 1225-3737
Email : hskrfan@brownscott. com



Jack Smith
Chief, Public Integrity Section

Date
By:

By:

Richard C. Pilger
Director, Election Crimes Branch
Robert J. Higdon, Jr.
Trial Attorney
Public Integrity Section
Criminal Division
U.S. Department of Justice
Telepho ne: 202-5 l 4-l 412
Telefax: 202-514-3003
E-mail: richard.pilger@usdoj.gov

bobby.hi gdon@usdoj . gov

John P. Sarcone
Polk County Attorney

Date

Polk County Justice Center
222 5th Avenue
Des Moines, IA 50309
Telephone: 5 15-286-37 37
Telefax: 515-286-3428
E-mail : ctvatty@polkcountviowa. gov


